Public Document Pack

Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Head of Legal and Democratic Services Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd



To: Cllr Brian Dunn (Chairman)

Councillors: Ron Davies, Glenys Diskin, Chris Dolphin, Ian Dunbar, Robin Guest,

Richard Lloyd, Mike Reece, Tony Sharps,

Ron Hampson, Dennis Hutchinson, Brian Lloyd,

Paul Shotton, Ian Smith and Nigel Steele-Mortimer

CS/NG

10 July 2012

Maureen Potter 01352 702322 maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the <u>COMMUNITY PROFILE & PARTNERSHIPS OVERVIEW &</u> <u>SCRUTINY COMMITTEE</u> will be held in the <u>DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY</u> <u>HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA</u> on <u>MONDAY, 16TH JULY, 2012</u> at <u>10.00 AM</u> to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

f - \rightarrow \subset

Democracy & Governance Manager

<u>A G E N D A</u>

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS ON INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)

3 **<u>MINUTES</u>** (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.

4 STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE - MID YEAR REVIEW (Pages 5 - 26)

Report of Chief Executive

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 <u>www.flintshire.gov.uk</u> Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg

5 POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONERS AND POLICE & CRIME PANELS (Pages 27 - 42)

Report of Chief Executive

6 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 43 - 46)

Report of Member Engagement Manager

COMMUNITY PROFILE AND PARTNERSHIPS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 28 MAY 2012

Minutes of the meeting of the Community Profile and Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the Flintshire County Council held at County Hall, Mold on Monday, 28 May 2012

PRESENT: Councillor B. Dunn (Chairman)

Councillors: G.D. Diskin, C.J. Dolphin, I. Dunbar, R.J.T. Guest, R.G. Hampson, H.D. Hutchinson, B. Lloyd, R. Lloyd, M.A. Reece, P. Shotton, and N.R. Steele-Mortimer

SUBSTITUTE: Councillor D. Butler for R. Davies

APOLOGIES: Councillor I. R. Smith

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors V. Gay and P.G. Heesom

<u>CONTRIBUTORS</u>: Leader, Deputy Leader, and Chief Executive

IN ATTENDANCE:

Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

Prior to the commencement of the meeting the Chairman welcomed and introduced newly elected Members to the Committee.

1. <u>APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR</u>

The Chairman sought nominations for a Vice-Chair for the Committee.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor R.J.T. Guest be appointed Vice-Chair of the Committee.

2. <u>MINUTES</u>

The minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 5 March 2012, had been circulated to Members with the agenda.

Matters arising

<u>'Shared Purpose – Shared Delivery' Welsh Government Consultation on Integrating Plans and Partnerships</u>

Councillor R.J.T. Guest referred to the issue of collaborative working and asked if any guidance had been received from the Welsh Government. The Chief Executive explained that no detail had been provided as yet, however, the Authority had developed its own protocol which was robust.

Clwyd Theatr Cymru

Councillor P. Shotton commented on the achievement of pupils' aspirations through performing arts and the need for more enhanced and collaborative working with Clwyd Theatr Cymru. He asked if an item on Clwyd Theatr Cymru could be included on the Forward Work Programme for the Committee. The Chief Executive concurred with the comments expressed and suggested that a presentation could be made to the Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.

4. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES' TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Member Engagement Manager introduced a report to inform the Committee of its Terms of Reference, set in the context of Terms of Reference of all of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

The Member Engagement Manager advised that the Council now had a Constitution Committee and six functional Overview and Scrutiny Committees. He referred to their role and functions which were detailed in the report and advised that the Terms of Reference for all six Overview and Scrutiny Committees were attached in an Appendix to the report.

Members were informed that specific Overview and Scrutiny training sessions would be held on 22 May, and 6 and 7 June 2012, to which all Members of the Council had been invited. Councillors G.D. Diskin and C.J, Dolphin suggested that the evening training sessions should commence at 6.00pm instead of 5.00pm to facilitate work or domestic commitments. The Member Engagement Manager acknowledged the concerns raised and agreed to amend the start time for evening training sessions accordingly.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That the report be noted; and
- (b) That the start time for evening training sessions be amended to 6.00pm instead of 5.00pm.

5. WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE COMMITTEE

The Member Engagement Manager introduced a report to identify a work programme for the Committee through the identification of appropriate topics from within the Terms of Reference. He provided background information and outlined the approach for developing the Committee's work programme as detailed in the report.

The Member Engagement Manager distributed a paper which listed potential work topics for the Committee to consider. Councillor A. Shotton commented on the Committee's key role in terms of reviewing and scrutinising decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of the Council's or Cabinet's functions. He suggested that the third sector/voluntary organisations also be included in the Committee's work programme to assist the Council in regional working, and cited social enterprise as an example.

The Member Engagement Manager advised that he would be meeting with Mr. Keiran Duff, Chief Officer of Flintshire Local Voluntary Council, to discuss the relationship between the voluntary sector council and overview and scrutiny committees.

The Chief Executive commented on the forthcoming election for police and Crime Commissioners and the consideration of co-opting members who represented Flintshire on either the Police Authority and subsequently the Police and Crime Panel, and the Fire and Rescue Authority, for meetings. when Crime and Disorder issues are discussed.

RESOLVED:

That the approach for developing the Committee's work programme be agreed.

6. **DURATION OF MEETING**

The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and ended at 10.20 a.m.

7. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the public or the press in attendance.

.....

Chairman

SUMMARY OF DECLARATIONS MADE BY MEMBERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S CODE OF CONDUCT

COMMUNITY PROFILE AND PARTNERSHIPS	DATE: 28 MAY 2012
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE	

MEMBER	ITEM	MIN. NO. REFERS
	NO DECLARATIONS WERE MADE	

Agenda Item 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

<u>REPORT TO:</u> COMMUNITY PROFILE & PARTNERSHIPS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: MONDAY, 16 JULY 2012

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP PERFORMANCE - MID YEAR REVIEW

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

- 1.01 For Community Profile and Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee to receive a mid year overview of:
 - the progress of the Strategic Partnerships;
 - the priorities for each of the Strategic Partnerships, and;
 - the key milestones for the year ahead.

2.00 BACKGROUND

- 2.01 The Flintshire Local Service Board (LSB) under its Terms of Reference has five principal roles:
 - 1. Effective and trusting partnership relationships as a set of local leaders.
 - 2. Discharging the responsibilities of an LSB this includes producing a meaningful and fit for purpose Community Strategy.
 - 3. Consistent and effective governance and performance of strategic partnerships, e.g., Children and Young People's Partnership, Community Safety Partnership, Health, Social Care and Well Being Partnership, Housing Partnership, Local Safeguarding Children Board, Regeneration Partnership and Youth Justice Service.
 - 4. Identifying common issues as public bodies/employers.
 - 5. Promoting collaboration in the design and provision of local public services and to make best economic use of local partner's resources, such as people, money, assets and technology.
- 2.02 Working alongside the Flintshire LSB are eight key Strategic Partnerships:
 - Children & Young People's Partnership and 'Making a Positive Difference' Plan (2011 to 2014)
 - Community Safety Partnership and Strategic Plan (2008 to 2011)
 - Flintshire Housing Partnership

- Health, Social Care and Well-being Partnership and the Good Health, Good Care Strategy (2011 to 2014)
- Flintshire and Wrexham Local Safeguarding Children Board Strategic Plan (2011 to 2014)
- Regeneration Partnership
- Voluntary Sector Compact
- Youth Justice Plan and Board

Collectively, the LSB and these Strategic Partnerships are known as 'Flintshire in Partnership'. Flintshire's Strategic Partnerships are critically important in contributing towards the quality of life for the County of Flintshire. It is important that members are aware of each of the partnership priorities and work programmes.

- 2.03 The Strategic Partnerships are formed and work together for a number of reasons:
 - Statutory provisions i.e. Children and Young People's Partnership; Community Safety Partnership; Health, Social Care and Well-being Partnership; Local Safeguarding Children Board, Youth Justice Service.
 - National agreement e.g. Voluntary Sector Compact.
 - Local agreement to ensure a more strategic and integrated approach, e.g. Regeneration Partnership, Housing Partnership.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Children & Young People's Partnership (CYPP) and 'Making a Positive Difference' Plan (2011 to 2014)

Requirement for the Strategy

The Local Authority has a statutory duty to publish a plan setting out its strategy for discharging its functions for children and young people as required by Section 26 Children Act 2004.

How and When the Strategy will be Reviewed

The needs assessment has been updated to support the new 2011 to 2014 Plan and it will inform the priority work areas. A community needs assessment for the Families First Plan was developed in October 2011.

The 2011 to 2014 Plan was approved by the CYPP Board, the Executive and BCUHB in May/June 2011. 'Making a Positive Difference' has now been adopted and was officially launched on the 19th June 2011.

The Plan is operational until 31st March 2014. It will be reviewed mid term on request from Welsh Government. Action areas within the plan will be measured to inform a review of progress annually. The CYPP Board is currently working to devise a fit for purpose monitoring structure and system to enable effective monitoring and evaluation.

The Families First and Flying Start Plans have been submitted to Welsh Government and are awaiting full agreement.

Current Key Priorities

- Children and Young People are cared for.
- Children and Young People are ready, able and encouraged to learn.
- Children and Young People have a healthy lifestyle.
- Children and Young People have time and space to play, and to participate in activities.
- Children and Young People are respected in all areas of their lives.
- Children and Young People are safe.
- Children, Young People and Families have the resources they need to maximise their opportunities.

Some of the above are recognised as joint priorities with other key strategies for Flintshire, e.g., joint priorities shared with the Health, Social Care and Well-Being Partnership ('Good Health, Good Care' Strategy).

Progress Made in the Last 6 Months

- a. The Families First funding transition commissioning is in hand and the outcomes are expected by 1st October 2012. The new commissioned strategic projects will be effective from this date. There is a multi agency commissioning panel working closely with procurement within FCC to manage this process. The Team Around the Family (TAF) team is now fully recruited to and operational. Current referrals include approximately 40 families which exceed expected targets. This is a significant area of work and has involved recruitment of a new team and development of the Families First Plan for 2012 to 2017.
- b. Work to map vulnerable families was undertaken in spring 2011. The work will inform the approach to the delivery of the Families First Programme. The follow on work to map families with a disabled child has now been published and is being fully utilised to help to commission new services under the Families First banner.
- c. The Child-care Sufficiency Audit has been completed.
- d. The Family Information Service has continued to expand its service and the welfare rights and Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) element of Families First are demonstrating positive debt reduction and family engagement outcomes.
- e. The completion of the website for the CYP Partnership <u>www.youngflintshire.co.uk/fflintyrifanc.co.uk.and</u> the development of the Families First website is ongoing. The DVD for the Families First Plan is

being developed and the DVD for the CYPP plan has been completed.

- f. Parenting Strategy work is being undertaken to build on the delivery of existing Parenting Programmes and workforce development. This includes the development of the National Occupational Standards accredited training programmes via the Parenting Strategy groups. We hope to build on this work under the Families First banner funding.
- g. Continued work to support child care provision and child care services including child care for disabled children. The volunteer mentor programme (working title of "BEING ME") is operational and has recruited volunteers.
- h. Workforce development approaches for the Team Around the Family programme and collaborative approaches to develop our workforce plan in line with other strategies. We have worked with Derby University to develop a framework for workforce development as a tool to be used in all our Families First work. This also ensures the inclusion of the Welsh language and diversity issues within all our planning.
- i. Continued work to take forward the advocacy model for Flintshire in partnership with all six North Wales counties and utilising the Welsh Government Guidance and the National Advocacy project 'MEIC'. NYAS are developing a joint project with the CYPP to map existing advocacy provision and offer National Occupational Standards qualifications widely.
- j. Engaging with the 'Creating an Active Flintshire' (CAF) Board. The CYPP team presented to the CAF Board to share good practice around engagement and participation methods.
- k. Regional developments of systems with Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB), input to the locality working links and regional development took place in January 2012.
- I. Assessing the CYP's equality commitments and application of this to the emerging CYP action areas for the CYP delivery plans.
- m. Further development of the 3rd sector Welsh language/bilingual youth support provision via Fflic/Menter laith and Urdd in Flintshire. This project secured Youth Service support again this year.
- n. Supported the work of "RESPECTFEST" respecting others work.

Key Milestones for the Year Ahead

- a. Continue to support the Team Around the Family programme development and creation of bespoke posts to deliver the programme.
- b. Continue to develop the Families First Programme and recruit the remainder of the team.

- c. Take forward the advocacy model for Flintshire in line with regional and national plans. Also enhance this provision with local NYAS project.
- d. Obesity in children and young people Public Health Wales (PHW) lead continue to work to develop action plans.
- e. Support Respectfest 2012 and address all participation work for the CYP Plan which will include a review of approaches.
- f. Develop robust systems to engage with BCUHB and engage in locality work and regional plans. CYPP Coordinator now attends Locality groups.
- g. Workforce development agree a workforce development plan in line with other strategies and partners' needs and considerations for the Families First Programme. Utilising workforce development tool for Families First planning.
- h. Further development of the Child-care Action Plan to build on existing notable practice, further delivery and development of the Parenting Strategy and workforce element of this work.
- i. Sustain strong effective links with Youth Service to support the review of Youth Service in Flintshire and re-model the participation delivery. CYPP now included in a working group to evaluate existing strategy.
- j. Assess the CYP's equality commitments together with the Councils Single Equality Plan and Welsh Language Scheme. A refresh audit of partnership governance is also being undertaken.
- k. Introduce an outcomes focussed plan and performance management system for our future CYP Plan. Hold development sessions for the CYP Board and stakeholders to inform the commissioning of services for the Families First funding. Effective from May 2012 to October 2012.
- Build on the notable practice of working with the Welsh Medium Youth Service providers, e.g., develop the DVD for the CYP Plan and other partnership working to ensure effective engagement of the Welsh medium provision. The CYPP Coordinator works bilingually with all Welsh medium organisations.

3.02 Community Safety Partnership and Strategic Plan (2011 to 2014) Requirement for the Strategy

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998, and the subsequent amendments by the Police Reform Act 2002 and Police and Justice Act 2006, place a statutory duty on the local authority, police authority, police service, primary health service, probation and fire service to work together to address the community safety agenda.

Collectively, these bodies make up the Community Safety Partnership (CSP), and each year they are required to produce a Strategic Assessment, and a Strategic Plan which is formulated every three years.

How and When the Strategy will be Reviewed

The CSP's Strategic Plan spans a three year period, and is reviewed on an annual basis. The current plan runs between April 2011 and March 2014. This is the first joint Community Safety Plan with Wrexham, and builds upon the joint Flintshire and Wrexham Strategic Assessment.

Current Priorities

The priorities of the Plan are jointly shared by both CSP's. They are:

- Reduce the levels of violent crime including domestic and sexual violence.
- Tackle anti-social behaviour.
- Reduce the levels of acquisitive crime.
- Reduce re-offending by supporting the agencies which actively manage offenders.
- Reduce the harm that substance misuse causes to communities, families and individuals.
- Tackle hate related crime and disorder and encourage reporting.
- Engage with the community to provide re-assurance and increase public confidence.

Progress Made in the Last 6 Months (Locally; Sub-Regionally & Regionally)

- a. On behalf of the Regional Leadership Board, leading on the establishment of a North Wales Safer Communities Board. The first meeting is due to be held on 3rd July 2012.
- b. The development of a North Wales Strategic Assessment is underway, and will be finalised by July 2012. This will be the first time this document has been regionally produced.
- c. Formal approval of Community Safety Fund and Substance Misuse Action Team (SMAT) funding for 2012/3.
- d. Review of the Priority Crime Group.
- e. Successful launch of the Street Rugby Initiative that will target young people in Communities First areas during the summer holidays.
- f. Launch of Operation Housewatch. This initiative will safeguard vacant and empty residential properties through the installation of low-level security equipment. The scheme will be supported by the Neighbourhood Wardens.
- g. On-going delivery of training to multi agency groups around the use of the CAADA Dash Risk Assessment tool for Domestic Abuse.
- h. Flintshire SMAT has commissioned a number of service user recovery programmes following a successful pilot run in Conwy, Denbighshire and Wrexham. This will improve longer term and sustainable recovery from substance misuse.

Key Milestones for the Year Ahead

- a. Establishment of the North Wales Safer Communities Board, and the work associated with its establishment.
- b. Preparations for the appointment of the Police and Crime Commissioner.
- c. Scoping the work streams emanating from 'Effective Services for Vulnerable Groups' – particularly relating to domestic violence.
- d. Flintshire SMAT to consider the implications of the Area Planning Board assuming greater commissioning powers.
- e. Regional commissioning of substance misuse awareness training for practitioners.
- f. Rolling out a substance misuse education programme in all secondary schools and Pupil Referral Unit's (PRU's) in Flintshire.
- g. Strengthening links with Licensing, SMAT and North Wales Police to ensure appropriate test purchasing operations within on-licence premises.
- h. Continued collaborative work regionally and sub regionally.
- i. Enhancement of existing services to young people based on the recommendations of the Hidden Harm Inquiry and a local service mapping exercise.
- j. Continue to work with Housing to look at the forthcoming requirement to implement the Wales Management Standard for Anti Social Behaviour.

3.03 Flintshire Housing Partnership

Requirement for the Strategy

The Flintshire Housing Partnership (FHP) was established to provide a consultative forum for strategic housing matters and provide direction to the Flintshire Local Housing Strategy. The partnership provides opportunities for member organisations to work collectively on housing and related projects and to influence the Flintshire Local Housing Strategy accordingly.

How and When the Strategy will be Reviewed

The FHP meets quarterly to review progress on key priority projects and further develop its work programme.

Current Key Priorities & Progress Made in the Last 6 Months

- Responding to Welfare Reforms Partnership members are working on the 'under occupation' situation at present and it is intended that the partnership will look at working together on helping each other with this problem.
- The establishment of a database of adapted properties is progressing and it is intended to have a completed register of adapted social housing in June 2012.
- Social Housing Grant (SHG) Programme: As reported previously the transition to the new programme management arrangements has gone smoothly. The Programme Delivery Plan (PDP) is being maintained and Welsh Government are being provided with quarterly updates.

- Glyndwr University, which had been engaged jointly by Flintshire and Wrexham Councils to update the North East Wales Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) is currently concluding and the outputs are being used to inform the emerging Local Housing Strategy project.
- The common housing register (Single Access Routes to Housing (SARTH) Project) has commenced and is being project managed by a shared post hosted by Wales and West Housing Association. A draft common allocation framework has been developed and a legal opinion is being sought.
- The above form the core of the FHP work programme and will continue to link to the review of the Flintshire Local Housing Strategy which is being carried out in collaboration with Wrexham County Borough Council.
- At its meeting held in May 2012, the Partnership resolved to review its terms of reference due to the number of operational issues being considered by the partnership.

Key Milestones for the Year Ahead

- a) Common Housing Register. Finalise allocation policy September 2012.
- b) Local Housing Strategy September 2012.

3.04 Health, Social Care and Well-being Partnership and the Good Health, Good Care Strategy (2011 to 2014)

Requirement for the Strategy

The Health, Social Care and Well-Being (HSCWB) Strategy is a statutory requirement in accordance with the 'Health, Social Care & Well-being Strategies (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2007' and associated guidance from the Welsh Government (WG).

The guidance states that there is a statutory requirement for a partnership between the Local Authority and the Local Health Board to formulate a local Health, Social Care and Well-Being Strategy for their area. This includes collectively developing strategic approaches to improve the health, social care and well being of the local population in partnership with other organisations in the voluntary, private and public sector.

<u>How and When the Strategy will be Reviewed</u> The current strategy is effective until 31st March 2014.

Current Key Priorities

The Strategy has 9 outcomes for the population of Flintshire:

• People do not smoke.

- People drink alcohol within recommended guidelines.
- People are a healthy weight for their height.
- Older people do not fall.
- People do not deliberately harm or injure themselves and that people do not die by suicide.
- Older frail people receiving health and social services are supported to remain at home and have options and influence over their lives.
- People with specific long term or chronic conditions receiving health and social services have options and influence over their lives and are supported to remain at home.
- Young disabled people receiving health and social care, going through transition into adulthood have choice/control and are supported to remain within their community where this is their choice.
- Informal carers have options and influence over their lives.

Progress Made in the Last 6 Months and Key Milestones for the Year Ahead

- a) Work continues to take place within localities in order to ensure that the strategic objectives within locality plans will contribute to the objectives set within the strategy.
- b) Regional obesity plans have been finalised and are being shared with localities for local implementation of actions for the two priorities; interventions within primary and community settings and interventions to reduce and prevent maternal obesity.
- c) Through the Well Being Activity Grant, resources have been purchased and distributed to older adults to provide quality assured information on recommended guidelines for alcohol consumption, along with unit measures to support healthy lifestyle choices.
- d) Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board introduced a new Smokefree Policy for staff, patients and visitors to all of its grounds. With very few exceptions, smoking is prohibited throughout the entire workplace, grounds and Health Board-owned vehicles. A range of support is offered to staff and patients who wish to give up smoking.
- e) Two priority areas for a regional approach to implementing the Obesity Pathway have been agreed following a North Wales workshop. These priorities are maternal obesity and people with cardiovascular risk.
- f) Locality plans have been developed to include actions in support of the strategy with representatives attending meetings on behalf of the Partnership Board.
- g) Through the Well being Activity Grant from the Welsh Government, quality assured resources have been ordered for use in secondary

schools to support health promotion activity relating to tobacco and alcohol.

- h) Work on the Transforming Social Services for Adults (TSSA) continues and will particularly support two of the HSCWB priorities:
 - Older frail people receiving health and social services are supported to remain at home and have options and influence over their lives.
 - People with specific long term or chronic conditions receiving health and social services have options and influence over their lives and are supported to remain at home.
- i) A regional group inclusive of BCUHB; Local Authorities and the Third Sector is working towards the completion of the regional information strategy (to meet the forthcoming Carers Measure). Whilst Flintshire has extended existing contracts for carers support from the third sector for an additional 6 months, we have utilised the Flintshire Carers Commissioning Strategy for 2012 to 2015 to commission services from September 2012 to March 2015. The contracts that will be developed will measure performance in a way that is meaningful for the HSCWB Strategy.
- j) Work to develop a joint Social Services for Children and Social Services for Adults 'Transition Team' is progressing. A Senior Practitioner was appointed during April and will take up their post when Human Resource processes are complete. A number of other key posts are in the process of being recruited to. The Provider arm of the team is operational and continues to support known young people with disabilities in transition. Existing work streams to develop person centred tools and clear policies and procedures are ongoing.

Regional or Sub-regional Developments

Proposals in line with the work being undertaken on Partnership and Plan rationalisation are being developed.

3.05 Flintshire and Wrexham Local Safeguarding Children Board (FWLSCB) Strategic Plan (2011 to 2014)

Requirement for the Strategy

The Children Act 2004 Section 31 requires every local authority to establish a Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) to coordinate and ensure the effectiveness of what is done by each member agency for the purpose of safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children. The objectives and functions of LSCB's are described in 'Safeguarding Children: Working Together' under the Children Act 2004 including that the LSCB should develop its own business plan to guide its work programme.

The Flintshire and Wrexham LSCB Strategic Plan 2011 to 2014 and Business Plan 2011 to 2012 are the first planning documents for the newly formed (April 2011) joint LSCB and have been developed by the multiagency LSCB Merge Steering Group taking into account:

- the content of the previous Flintshire and Wrexham LSCB Business Plans.
- the findings of the LSCB Self Assessment which took place in each local authority area in 2010 (prior to the merge).
- the views of children and young people across Wrexham and Flintshire as collected by both Children and Young People's Partnerships to inform the Welsh Government Core Aim 3 (*All Children and Young People enjoy the best possible health, are free from abuse, victimisation and exploitation*) of the statutory Children and Young People Plans.
- comments on our strategic plan from the range of professionals represented on the FWLSCB and a number of other key statutory partnerships which exist across Flintshire and Wrexham.

How and When the Strategy will be Reviewed

The strategy for the FWLSCB covers a period of three years and will be reviewed annually in line with the review of the annual business plan.

Progress made on the actions within the business plan are reported to the FWLSCB Development Group on a quarterly basis using the 'Headline' document which employs 'red, amber, green' ratings to reflect performance. This performance reporting document is also shared with the FWLSCB Executive Board.

Performance measures in the business plan will be reported at the end of the calendar year and be included in the FWLSCB Annual Report. The FWLSCB will also consider all performance information available to them as part of the annual self assessment which will inform the review of the strategy and development of the business plan for the year ahead.

The FWLSCB undertook its annual self assessment on the 24th January, using the Welsh Government LSCB Self assessment and improvement tool. This assessment has supported the Board in measuring its effectiveness and identifying areas for development for the year ahead. The Board will develop an annual report which will detail progress against each of the agreed measures and include the outcome of its annual self assessment.

Current Key Priorities & Progress Made in the Last 6 Months

The FWLSCB agreed a number of key functions based on those set out in statutory guidance - Safeguarding Children: Working Together under the Children Act 2004. In the development of the strategy these functions have been used as a framework for action with the Board setting its priorities 2011-14 against each function. In relation to the key priorities noted in the last report (January 2012) the following progress has been made:

• The LSCB Business plan for 2011/12 has been implemented and tasks carried over are included in the 2012/13 business plan, which was

agreed by Board members in March 2012.

- Formal partnership agreements setting out communication and reporting with the FWLSCB are in place with the Flintshire HSCWB Partnership, the Flintshire CYPP, the Wrexham HSCWB Partnership, the Wrexham CYPP and the Flintshire and Wrexham YJS services.
- The FWLSCB training calendar for 2012/13 has been implemented and findings in respect of attendance, quality and impact were provided to the Boards self assessment event in January. The annual training needs analysis has been undertaken and has informed the training calendar for the year ahead.
- The FWLSCB annual conference on 'Safeguarding in a high-tech digital world' was held in February 2012. The conference was attended by the Children's Commissioner for Wales and over 100 professionals, volunteers and children and young people from Wrexham and Flintshire. Specific actions from the event have been included in the Boards business plan for 2012/13.
- All national and regional policies and procedures produced throughout the year have been ratified and disseminated through the LSCB and a number of awareness raising activities have taken place throughout the year, including the annual conference, web pages and articles in local newspapers and the Councils magazines.
- The first meeting to set up the junior LSCB with children and young people took place on 26th May 2012.
- Further revisions have been made to the FWLSCB audit tool to support the Board in its monitoring role and a programme of audits has been agreed for 2012/13.

Key Milestones for the Year Ahead

- i. Progress the implementation of the LSCB Business Plan for 2012/13.
- ii. Continue to build and strengthen relationships with other Partnerships with regards to safeguarding activity.
- iii. Continue to promote and raise awareness of safeguarding with professionals, parents/carers and children and young people the need to safeguarding.
- iv. Continue to strengthen the Boards monitoring role in relation to safeguarding matters.
- v. Continue to provide a range of training on child protection and safeguarding that meets local needs and is continually reviewed to ensure it is effective.
- vi. Continue to ensure that children, young people, Parents and Carers are consulted with, listened to and involved in the development and review of the work of the LSCB

Regional or Sub-regional Developments

Following the proposals to reduce the number of LSCB's in Wales, as set out within the draft Social Services Bill (Wales) consultation, the Chairs, Vice Chairs and business managers of the three LSCB's in North Wales have met to consider options for North Wales. A proposal has been developed and will be considered by each of the North Wales LSCB's in June/July.

3.06 **Regeneration Partnership**

Requirement for the Strategy

The Flintshire Regeneration Partnership was established in September 2005 to bring together the wide range of organisations and initiatives involved in regeneration in Flintshire, to ensure a more strategic and integrated approach. The preparation of a holistic approach to tackling the county's needs and for this to be set out in an agreed long-term strategy, were early recommendations of the Partnership.

The Flintshire Regeneration Strategy was produced in 2008/09 and subsequently approved by the Executive in October 2009, it is of particular importance at a time of economic uncertainty. It sets out those actions that will be taken to facilitate recovery, to ensure that Flintshire is prepared for the challenges to be faced as the economy emerges from recession and to ensure that a focused and coordinated approach brings together the actions and resources of all relevant partners for maximum local benefit.

How and When the Strategy will be Reviewed

The Partnership held its second Economic Regeneration Conference on 24th February 2012 at Clwyd Theatr Cymru, when partners and stakeholders were able to review progress and identify priority actions for the next two to three years. An invited audience of 100 people attended the conference, representing local businesses, Town and Community Councils, Town Partnerships, the Voluntary Sector, Welsh Government, and other key stakeholder partners.

The Regeneration Strategy itself will be reviewed during 2012/2013 to ensure that it reflects these priorities and remains focussed and up to date.

Current Key Priorities

The Regeneration Partnership is using the theme "Flintshire: Open for Business" to encompass its work and has created themes for regeneration in Flintshire – Business, Places and People.

The key priorities are:

- Improve rate of youth unemployment.
- Increase level of inward investment.
- Strengthen competitive position for manufacturing, especially advanced manufacturing.
- Improve availability of skilled workforce for large companies.
- Reduce vacancy rates and improved foot fall on High Streets.

Progress Made in the Last 6 Months

Business:

- a. WG announced the new Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ) as a key strategic location for Wales Advanced Manufacturing sector. DEZ will be a catalyst for the Northern Gateway development attracting new investment opportunities, creating an estimated 7,000 new jobs and deliver sustainable regeneration helping to transform communities both in Deeside and across North Wales.
- b. Work is underway to develop a Local Labour Market Centre in partnership with Careers Wales, Job Centre Plus, Communities First, Deeside College, Glyndwr University and neighbouring Local Authorities. This will be encompassed within the proposed Advanced Manufacturing Centre.
- c. Flintshire Business Week October 2011 attracted 2,576 business delegates against WG Outcome Agreement target of 1,400. Key events included; Flintshire Goes to Westminster, a two day Trade Fair hosted by Convatec, Deeside, AM/MP Question Time and the Flintshire Business Awards and Gala Dinner.
- d. The level of general support and investment enquiries from businesses continue to increase with 2,583 individual enquiries handled this year. In addition, 67 business and community development initiatives and forums have been designed and delivered, engaging with more than 3,900 delegates to encourage networking and training to all business sectors and sizes.

Places:

- a. The Masterplan for Flint is now complete and FCC and partners are now planning the implementation of the key recommendations.
- b. A Destination Management Partnership has been formed to lead the approach to the visitor economy in Flintshire. This approach is complementary to wider town centre management, rural development and business development activity, as well as to key service improvements such as the review of Streetscene services.
- c. The Welsh Government has given approval to the North East Wales Town Centre Regeneration project, lead by FCC, and covering Flintshire and Wrexham. This will support the physical regeneration of town centres across the area and has a project value of £3,959,497. The project will run from now until the end of 2015.
- d. The Welsh Government also gave approval to the Rural Development Plan (RDP) programme for Flintshire; a package of 4 projects worth in total £4,980,562 to improve the quality of life and economic vitality of rural communities.
- e. The previous round of RDP funding came to a successful conclusion during the last months of the year with £2,745,994 of funding drawn down from WG, approximately 94.4% of the allocated funds.

People:

- a. The Regeneration Partnership has been working closely with Communities First and the Local Service Board on the Employment, Education and Training (EET) agenda. Significant progress has been made linking with Flintshire's manufacturing and hospitality industries, establishing new good practice aimed at reducing the numbers of young people not in Employment Education or Training NEET and improving opportunities for Flintshire's most disadvantaged communities.
- b. Partners aiming primarily at young people under 25 are developing a number of initiatives with Flintshire Regeneration Partners acting as catalysts to progress.
- c. Discussions with public, private and voluntary sector partners including Business in the Community (BITC), Flintshire Local Voluntary Council (FLVC) and Groundwork UK, are developing a cross sector approach to work experience, apprenticeships and entrepreneurship, with the focus on young people in secondary education, and on young people under 25 not in Employment Education or Training (NEET). Careers Wales, Job Centre Plus and Communities First are supporting the developing Flintshire agenda, linked to the Jobs Growth Wales and Get Britain Working strategies.

Key milestones for the year ahead

General:

a. Review and refresh the Regeneration Strategy and develop a monitoring framework for progress towards key outcomes.

Business:

- a. Develop the Deeside Enterprise Zone further and attract and support inward investors.
- b. Develop the Manufacturing Centre of Excellence project.

Places:

- a. Continue to develop support for the designation of a Regeneration Area for Deeside to bring about a large comprehensive renewal area in the county – jobs / housing improvement / town centre renewal / environmental upgrade (ongoing).
- b. Explore the potential of a Local Asset Backed Vehicle as a means of securing the long-term regeneration of Flintshire (ongoing).
- c. Implement the long term plans for the eight main towns in Flintshire (ongoing).
- d. Develop Destination Management Plan for Flintshire. (Mid-2012).

People:

a. Develop a Labour Market Office linked to the Deeside Growth Zone to link new job opportunities to the local unemployed population.

- b. Continue programme of jobs support in Communities First areas to link local people to job opportunities and support provision (ongoing).
- c. Continue to address the Child Poverty agenda by increasing residents' financial literacy, and improved access to Credit Unions through additional community based collection points and model junior savings schemes, particularly in schools which serve disadvantaged areas.
- e. Review the structures and priorities for the CF programme to align it to the strategic needs of the area and the WG priorities.

Regional or Sub-regional Developments

Sub-regional collaboration projects are underway for inward investment, tourism and events.

3.07 Voluntary Sector Compact

The Compact is a way to supporting collaboration between statutory bodies and the voluntary (or third) sector. It was originally established as a national agreement between central government and the voluntary and community sector in 1998.

Current Key Priorities

- Continue to support the development of a strategic approach to 1) advice provision in Flintshire, 2) maximising external funding opportunities, and 3) efficiency programme.
- Development of Regional Health Compact.
- Transport and Access to Health Services focus on regional & sub regional partnerships.
- Maximising external funding opportunities.
- FLVC Community Lottery bid under the theme of 'Learning and Empowerment'.

Key Milestones for the Year Ahead

- Big Lottery: Community Voice FLVC to submit the 2nd round bid by 30th July. The aim of the "Community Voice" programme is to build the capacity of citizens to engage in planning and running services and portfolios of projects that respond to their communities needs and advance community benefit.
- Transport and Access to Health Community transport and the planning of health services within Localities.
- Advice Management and the implications of welfare reform.
- Revised Scrutiny arrangements.

3.08 Youth Justice Plan and Board

Requirement for the Strategy

The Youth Justice Plan is written annually to meet legislative, grant making and business planning requirements. It has to meet the requirements of:

• The Youth Justice Board (YJB) – as a legislative requirement (Crime

and Disorder Act 1998) and condition of grant.

- The Youth Justice Service (YJS) Executive Management Board.
- The County Council.
- YJS staff at an operational level.
- Partner agencies.

How and When the Strategy will be Reviewed

The current strategy is operational until mid year 2012 when the 2012 to 2013 plan will become operational. The new plan for 2012 is being developed using an outcome focused approach and it will engage with young people and other stakeholders in its construction.

The 2012 plan will be circulated to partner agencies for consultation then be approved by the County Council scrutiny process.

Current Key Priorities

Priorities for 2012 are:

- Reduce the number of young people entering the criminal justice system by monitoring first time entrants.
- b. Reduce the number of young people entering the secure estate.
- c. Reduce the reoffending rate of 10 to 17 year olds.
- d. Increase victim and public confidence.

Progress Made in the Last 6 Months

- a) A reduction of First Time Entrants (FTE) has continued to be achieved by the YJS. Preventing offending is the principal aim of the youth justice system and Flintshire YJS has continued to develop prevention services which have an impact on the reduction of the number of FTE into the youth justice system.
- b) The numbers of young people entering the secure estate are minimal and the introduction of the Youth Rehabilitation Order the previous year enabled the partnership between the YJS and the Courts to be reviewed and strengthened. The numbers of young people attending court has seen a significant decrease and this can be attributed to more robust policing methods looking at alternatives to arrest, the restorative justice agenda linked to prevention work carried out by the Youth Justice Service and possibly the closing of the Mold custody suite.
- c) Reoffending rates are determined by monitoring cohorts of young people and the YJS has implemented systems linked to the Careworks system to track these. The highest rates of re-offending are demonstrated by those young people subject to periods in custody. It should be noted that this population in Flintshire is often confined to three or four individuals so any offence committed by this group impacts significantly on re-offending rates demonstrated by the whole group.

 d) The YJS contact all identified victims and has a dedicated Victim Liaison Officer. The Victim Strategy is currently being reviewed and amended.

Key Milestones for the Year Ahead

- a) There are significant policy changes ahead being implemented by Central Government which will impact upon services provided for the Young people of Flintshire. There is consideration being given to a Youth Justice Bill (Wales) which would be welcomed to build upon the work undertaken by the All Wales Youth Offending Strategy.
- b) The funding formula for grants from the JYB is still not decided and there maybe an additional factor of Payment by Results to contend with which could impact upon practice.
- c) The election of the Police and Crime Commissioner for North Wales could have an impact on funding levels. Welsh Government funding is also going to be introduced with a regional footprint which will require the four North Wales Youth Justice Services to collaborate and work much more closely together than previously.
- d) Relocation of office premises to Library HQ, possibly in October of this year would require an agile method of working which will provide some challenges however there are many positives to this move with the integration with Children's Services.

Regional or Sub-regional Developments

- a) On a regional level the formation of the North Wales Safer Communities Board which will come into force from June 2012 will impact upon Flintshire YJS as it will provide the strategic input into the service and act as a commissioner for some of the Welsh Government grant funding streams.
- b) Sub regionally, Flintshire YJS will collaborate with Wrexham YJS in areas of practice and training as described above to ensure funding continues.
- c) The Young Peoples Drug and Alcohol Team has further developed its brief with the inclusion of a new post for dual diagnosis (mental health and substance misuse). This new post with the additional SMAT funding has enabled the Service to provide a much needed support service to young people and has a more direct route into Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS).
- d) The Flintshire/Wrexham LSCB has now been in operation for over 12 months and the YJS has developed protocols around Serious Incidents with the Board and the Youth Justice Service continues to be actively in all areas of this Board and is represented on all groups from the Executive to support groups.

- e) Flintshire YJS continues to engage with Flintshire Inclusion service and has seen a rise in the time young people are spending in Education, Training and Employment and the Pupil Referral Unit that is a joint venture with the Inclusion Service has recently expanded its brief to work with 16 plus years to enable them to gain college placements.
- f) A significant development is through Creating Active Wales/Sports Wales which the YJS are hopeful to utilise funding to engage young people in further constructive use of leisure time to divert them away from criminal or anti social activities.

3.09 **Partnership and Plan Rationalisation**

In January 2012, the Welsh Government (WG) published, for consultation, statutory guidance on integrating plans and partnerships called 'Shared Purpose - Shared Delivery'.

The aim of the guidance is to strengthen the role and accountability of Local Service Boards in Wales and to replace the four existing statutory plans with a single integrated plan which would be driven by the Local Service Board. In doing so, the Plan would be used to meet statutory responsibilities in relation to the development of plans and strategies under the following legislation:

- Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 Part 2: Community Strategies and Planning (Ss 37-46).
- Children Act 2004 (Part 3: S26) (which includes plans required in accordance with the Children and Families (Wales) Measure 2010 (S2) and the Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010 (Part 1)).
- Childcare Act 2006 (Ss 22 and 26).
- NHS (Wales) Act 2006 (Part 3: S40).
- Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (Part 1: S6).

This would currently incorporate:

- Flintshire County Vision 2009 to 2019.
- Making a Positive Difference Plan 2011 to 2014 (Children & Young People's Partnership).
- Community Safety Strategic Plan 2011 to 2014.
- Good Health, Good Care Strategy 2011 to 2014 (Health, Social Care and Well-being Partnership).

This guidance would replace:

- Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 Part 2: Community Strategies and Planning.
- Stronger Partnership for better outcomes Guidance on local cooperation under the Children Act 2004 issued August 2006 and subsequent guidance on the Children and Young People's Plan.
- Health Social Care and Wellbeing Strategy Guidance 2011/12 to

2012/13.

- 3.10 The Community Profile and Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the consultation document and its impact at its meeting on the 5th March.
- 3.11 The Flintshire response to the consultation was outlined in the report to Executive on the 27th March 2012. In summary, our response was a follows:
 - By majority we do not support the proposal to make LSB's a statutory body (some partners do support the proposal).
 - We do support reasonable extension of partnership rationalisation.
 - We do support the special proposals for ways of making partnership rationalisation work, for example, the Single Integrated Plan.
 - We want local freedom in the number of partnerships that exist in Flintshire without the need for prescriptive and intrusive statutory guidance that defines the way in which partnerships must operate.
 - We believe that LSB's should have the freedom to act and prioritise allowing for local decision.
 - From the outset, the Flintshire LSB has had a role of overseeing and coordinating the strategic partnerships. Strategic Partnerships have had freedom over their approach to delivery. By giving the LSB's more control, this may have a negative impact as partners may become protective over sovereignty.
- 3.12 Welsh Government will publish the final guidance in late June / early July 2012.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Community Profile and Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the mid year review of the Strategic Partnerships.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 There are no financial implications directly associated with this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 The needs assessments that underpin the Strategic Plans include a consideration of poverty and deprivation and its impact on the population.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 There are no environmental impacts directly associated with this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 There are no equalities impacts directly associated with this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The on-going coordination and implementation of the Strategic Plans and 9.01 Partnership Work Programmes will be taken forward by designated officers within the relevant Partnership teams.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 None required.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None required.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 **BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS**

None.

Contact Officer:	Yvonne Tonks
Telephone:	01352 702128
Email:	yvonne_tonks@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO:COMMUNITY PROFILE & PARTNERSHIPS
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 16TH JULY 2012

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT:POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONERSAND POLICE & CRIME PANELS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To inform the committee (in its role as the Council's statutory crime & disorder committee) of the introduction of Police & Crime Commissioners and Police & Crime Panels and the implications.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 is now law. As a result Police Authorities will cease in November. On 15th November voters across Wales and England will be electing Police & Crime Commissioners (PCCs) for the first time, one per Police Force area.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

- 3.01 For policing and its governance, there are likely to be significant changes. For the transition period the North Wales Police Authority is working with the North Wales Police Force and other stakeholders to ensure continuity of planning and performance.
- 3.02 In the North Wales Force area a Transition Board has been established to oversee these changes. This comprises the Chief Constable, the Acting Chief Executive of the Authority, the Chair and Vice-Chair, representatives of the six local authorities and other key staff and officers.
- 3.03 To aid prospective candidates for the role of North Wales Police & Crime Commissioner, the North Wales Police Authority and Force, together with myself as Police Area Returning Officer arranged an information session in July to provide brief and provide information on current arrangements for policing in North Wales including finance, performance, organisational structure and the policing model.
- 3.04 The Commissioner will be elected for a four year period and will be required to publish police and crime plan, setting out police and crime objectives for the area.

In addition, Commissioners will:-

- Determine the level of the police precept element of the council tax and plan policing budgets
- Oversee community safety and overall security in the area
- Work with local partnerships and national and regional criminal justice agencies and services
- Appoint the chief constable (if and when the post is vacant) who will remain responsible for operational matters
- Build relations with the chief constable and their management teams, delivery partners and communities for common goals
- Contribute to national policing capabilities
- 3.05 Commissioners will be scrutinised by Police & Crime Panels (PCPs) which will be made up of a minimum of ten representatives from the local authorities in the force area. The duties of the Panels will include:
 - Requiring the Commissioner to respond to any concerns which they may have;
 - Making recommendations on the crime plan and annual reports and
 - Confirming or vetoing the Commissioner appointment of chief constable (if and when vacant) and the level of police precept.
- 3.06 A recent Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) paper is attached for reference. The WLGA Co-ordinating Committee will consider an update report on the establishment of Police and Crime Panels at its meeting on Friday 27th July 2012.

4.00 **RECOMMENDATIONS**

4.01 That the report be received and the Committee be invited to comment on measures to ensure transition and effective future governance arrangements.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 None arising directly from this information report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 None arising directly from this information report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 None arising directly from this information report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None arising directly from this information report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None arising directly from this information report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 Not applicable

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Not applicable

12.00 APPENDICES

WLGA Background Paper

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Material published on the North Wales Police Authority, Electoral Commission and Home Office websites.

Contact Officer:	Robert Robins
Telephone:	01352 702320
Email:	Robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Welsh Local Government Association

Establishing Police and Crime Panels in Wales



Introduction

As part of the changes to be introduced by the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, on 15 November 2012 voters across Wales will be electing Police and Crime Commissioners (PCC) for each force area.

In broad terms, the PCCs will take over from the Police Authority, which will cease to exist. The PCC will set policing priorities, decide on the precept (the money which comes to policing from the Council Tax), appoint the Chief Constable, hold the Chief Constable to account and if necessary dismiss the Chief Constable.

The Commissioner will be scrutinised by a Police and Crime Panel (PCP) which will be made up of at least 10 local councillors from the local authorities within the police force area and two independent members. The Panel will act as a critical friend, offering challenge and support as appropriate.

The aim of this paper is to inform local authorities in Wales of the key roles and responsibilities of the PCP and to aid discussion and planning to prepare for these changes in each police force area.

Panel Arrangements

The Secretary of State (Home Secretary) is responsible for the establishment of PCPs in Wales. This arrangement follows on from the National Assembly vote to refuse consent for the UK Parliament to place duties on local authorities in Wales (a devolved responsibility). In England local authorities are wholly responsible for the establishment of PCPs with the Secretary of State only being required to intervene if arrangements are not made.

The Police and Social Responsibility Act lists the arrangements which must be in place for PCPs to operate (extracts from the Act are included in Appendix A):

- co-option of and holding of office by the co-opted members of the police and crime panel;
- the term of office of appointed members and co-opted members of the panel;
- resignation and removal of appointed members and co-opted members of the panel;
- conditions for re-appointment of appointed members and co-opted members of the panel;
- the payment of allowances to members of the police and crime panel;
- provision for promoting the role of the police and crime panel;
- administrative and other support to be given to the police and crime panel and its members;
- Support and guidance to be given to:

(i) members of relevant local authorities,

(ii) members of the executives (if any) of relevant local authorities, and

(iii) officers of relevant local authorities,

in relation to the functions of the police and crime panel.

The Act confirms that the Panel arrangements may make different provision for different areas.

Legal Status of the Panel

The Secretary of State must establish and maintain a separate Police and Crime Panel for each police area. In Wales, the Panel is not a committee or joint committee of any local authority or local authorities and the Home Office intends that the Panels will be unincorporated free standing bodies rather than non-departmental public bodies. Formal guidance on this point is expected from the Home Office in the near future.

Local Discretion and cost of establishing PCPs

The UK Government has indicated that there will be a relatively high degree of local discretion in establishing the most appropriate arrangements for a PCP. We understand that as far as possible, the Home Secretary wants the Panel itself to determine the way forward.

One of the most efficient means of providing support to PCPs would be through the local authorities, which have officers who are appropriately qualified and have officers with the appropriate experience who are locally based. In Wales there will be a requirement to translate formal reports and to provide simultaneous translation. These costs can best be kept manageable by using existing personnel. Another option for establishing PCPs could be through a national partner organisation, such as the WLGA. Such an arrangement would still draw from local government officers in the area to provide advice as required but could also enable the maximisation of the limited resources available and assist in cross boundary working.

Any contract under which a Welsh local authority or national body agrees to host the Police and Crime Panel would need to respect the different legal position in relation to the Home Secretary who is responsible for the Panel's liabilities. This may include spelling out which liabilities will be met within the HO funding provided to meet the costs of panels, and which may be deemed 'exceptional' liabilities requiring support from the Home Office. Clear terms of trade will help to reassure the Welsh Government that the costs will not fall on Welsh local government. It will also reassure the Home Office that funding is only being used to meet costs required by the legislation.

Given the responsibilities that remain with the Home Secretary in relation to a PCP in Wales, it is clear a protocol will be needed, setting out the circumstances in which additional costs will be incurred (whether in arranging further meetings or requiring further advice from officers) and how 'exceptional' liabilities would be managed.

Timeline for PCPs

To date our understanding of the timeline for establishing PCPs in Wales is as follows:

- In early 2012 the Secretary will write to invite local authorities to work together to form panels in each force area and to agree a host Authority in each area, with a deadline of July 2012.
- The nominated members of the panel (councillor members) will need to be submitted in June/July 2012 to the Secretary of State and lead authority.
- The Panels will need to be operating by November 2012 in order for them to be in place by the time of the election of the Commissioner.
- In England, the Association of Police Authorities (APA) and Local Government Association (LGA) are recommending that the panels should look towards July 2012 as a target date in order for the necessary training and other preparation including agreeing terms of working, membership (co-opted members) and other key issues to be resolved. However, the election in Wales may make this target date difficult.

Potential Operating Models for PCPs

The legislation does not take a view on whether serving on the PCP should be seen as something for executive members or for scrutiny members and we understand the Home Secretary does not intend to take a view either. It may be appropriate, however, for the local authorities in each police force area to adopt a consistent approach.

The core role of the PCPs, as outlined in the Police and Responsibility Act is to support, scrutinise and hold the Commissioner to account. At this stage it is difficult to pre-empt the type or level of engagement the PCC would like with the PCP, as they may value a model which encourages greater joint working or a more distant relationship based on checks and balances. However, as there is a requirement to establish the PCP ahead of the election of the PCC, local authorities in each Force Area should give consideration to the following potential operating models and determine the most appropriate model for their area:

A) Leadership-based Police and Crime Panel

Outwith the scrutiny role of PCPs, a strong cooperative relationship is required between the Commissioner and the leadership of each local authority. They will need to have regard to each others plans including community safety objectives and priority actions and work together to tackle particular problems within each force and local authority area.

Under this model, the appointment of Leaders or Lead Cabinet Members for Community Safety to the PCP would enable them to use the Panel to work closely together to scrutinise the PCCs Policing and Crime Plan and their proposals for the Policing Precept for the Force area.

Each local authority will have scrutiny arrangements which enable members to examine the progress being made by the Council and the Police in cutting crime and bringing offenders to justice within the County. The expectation might be that the lead Member and County Chief Inspector attend quarterly meeting and that the Commissioner and a member of the ACPO Team attend at least once a year, although individual PCCs will clearly have a view on arrangements in their area.

B) Scrutiny Based Panel

It could be argued that the arrangements described above could lead to too close a relationship between the Commissioner and the Panel, and expand the Panel from its conceptual basis within the Act. It could therefore be more appropriate for scrutiny members to represent local authorities on the PCP, thereby splitting responsibility with the Executive members (who will represent local authorities on the Safer Communities Board in North Wales).

By having a scrutiny based panel, it could be argued that further scrutiny of community safety at a local level would be duplication. The same members could conduct joint scrutiny of community safety work, potentially sitting immediately after the PCP as a force-wide Safer Communities Scrutiny Panel. It will be important not to conflate the roles of the bodies, however, and to be clear that the PCP is not scrutinising the force (which is the PCCs role).

A potential hybrid model would be for each Council to be represented by the Leader or lead Cabinet Member, with those councils with two seats also represented by the Chair of the relevant Scrutiny Committee.

Frequency of PCP meetings

It is expected that that Police and Crime Panels will meet significantly less often than Police Authorities and Ministers are clear that they do not intend the Panel to be replicating the activities of the Authority. PCPs take on only the scrutiny function of existing authorities.

While a quarterly cycle for scrutinising the Commissioner's performance seems reasonable (and reflects the status quo), there are a number of other reasons why further or additional meetings may be required:

- Co-option of members to the panel
- Confirmation Hearings for appointment of Chief Constable, Deputy Commissioner, Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer of the Office of Commissioner (these meetings will require appropriate guidance from a human resources professional who has familiarised themselves with the process).
- Development of Policing Priorities, Police and Crime Plan and Budget Proposals. If the Commissioner is keen to build a consensus rather than engage in a confrontation, s/he may want to give the Panel early sight of proposals and an opportunity to influence them. Most police authorities have at least a couple of informal discussions in October to January before meeting formally in February to sign off the proposals.
- It may be appropriate for the Panel to scrutinise the collaboration efforts of Commissioners. It may make sense for this to be organised on a regional basis. In North Wales this implies participating in an all Wales forum and a joint forum with the North West of England at least once a year. It should be noted that this would be dependent on the preferred working method of the other Commissioners/Force areas, and that the Home Secretary has clear roles in relation to collaboration.

Allowances

The Home Secretary has indicated that she intends to pay members sitting on PCPs an annual allowance of £920. If membership of the Panel is seen as part of the duties of Cabinet members, the reluctance of the Home Secretary to pay allowances which recognise the level of commitment involved will be less of an issue. However, the Independent Remuneration Panel's annual report states that Cabinet members are remunerated for a full time role already and should consider carefully as to whether they undertake additional duties and remuneration (although the IRP has no powers on PCP allowances).

Achieving Political Balance

The "balanced panel" objective means that in nominating members to the Panel, local authorities are expected to ensure that the local authority members of a police and crime panel represent the political make-up of the relevant local authorities (when taken together). This will be particularly important if authorities wish to appoint a second member. If agreement cannot be reached, it is for the Home Secretary to decide which of the local authorities to ask to make further nominations. In some force areas this may be done on the basis of population, whereas in others the allocation of an additional seat could alternate between counties with a similar population.

The regulations allow for the co-option of further members to the Panel if this would assist in meeting a balance between parties which better reflects the balance across the force area as a whole and this may be particularly appropriate where the two methods deliver different results.

Although in Wales, the Home Secretary will be responsible for establishing panels, to ensure that these panels are right for the local area, she will invite local authorities within Wales to take a leading role in this process. This will include inviting local authorities in the force area to nominate councillors for appointment to the panel. In nominating panel members local authorities must consider, in line with legislation and as far as is practicable, the balanced appointment objective laid out in the Act. This includes the make-up of the local areas, including the political make-up, and the required skills, knowledge and experience for the panel to function effectively. In the absence of nominations, the Home Secretary will identify and determine members of local authorities for the panel taking into account the need for balance. The detail of this backstop process will be set out in guidance. Once established, panels will be able, with the Home Secretary's consent, to co-opt further members, both elected and independent, up to a maximum panel size of twenty.

Planning the transition from the Police Authority to the Commissioner and Panel

The Home Secretary recognises the importance of having the Panels ready to begin work in November, as outlined in the timeline section of this report. Because there are all-out elections for local authorities in May 2012, it is necessary to re-appoint all councillor members of the Police Authority – in a similar timescale as the appointments to the Panel. There is a very strong argument for co-ordinating these two processes and ensuring that as far as is possible, the individuals who will serve on the PCP from November 2012 who serve on the Police Authority from June to October.

The appointments to the Police Authority are of course formally made by a Joint Committee whereas the nominations to the Panel are made by individual authorities, but it should be possible to co-ordinate the two. In North Wales and Gwent, there will be an additional member of the Panel compared to the Police Authority whereas in Dyfed Powys and South Wales the numbers will be the same (ten). It is impossible to predict what the political balance calculations in each Force area will look like post-election, but starting off by considering who each council will want to appoint to the Panel (with those Councils with two members appointing one from the political administration and one from the opposition) and considering whether this is "near enough" would seem reasonable.

For further information please contact:

Naomi Alleyne, Director, Equalities and Social Justice <u>Naomi.alleyne@wlga.gov.uk</u> 02920 468660

Appendix A

Police and Crime Panels in Wales Extracts from the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011

1. Functions of the Panel

The functions of the police and crime panel for a police area must be exercised with a view to supporting the effective exercise of the functions of the police and crime commissioner for that police area.

Under Section 28 of the Act a police and crime panel must—

(3) (a) review the draft police and crime plan, or draft variation, given to the panel by the relevant police and crime commissioner

(b) make a report or recommendations on the draft plan or variation to the commissioner.

(4) (a) arrange for a public meeting of the panel to be held as soon as practicable after the panel is sent an annual report from the Commissioner setting out the exercise of the Commissioner's functions in the financial year, and the progress which has been made in the financial year in meeting the police and crime objectives in the police and crime plan.

(b) ask the police and crime commissioner, at that meeting, such questions about the annual report as the members of the panel think appropriate,

(c) review the annual report, and

(d) make a report or recommendations on the annual report to the commissioner.

(6) (a) review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the relevant police and crime commissioner in connection with the discharge of the commissioner's functions; and

(b) make reports or recommendations to the relevant police and crime commissioner with respect to the discharge of the commissioner's functions,

(7) publish any reports or recommendations made to the relevant police and crime commissioner.

(8) send copies of any such reports or recommendations to each local authority whose area falls wholly or partly within the police area.

Scrutiny of senior appointments

When the Commissioner proposes to appoint:

(a) the commissioner's chief executive,

(b) the commissioner's chief finance officer, or

(c) a deputy police and crime commissioner.

The Panel must be notified of the name of the proposed appointee, the criteria used to assess the suitability of the candidate for the appointment, why the candidate satisfies those criteria; and the terms and conditions on which the candidate is to be appointed.

The panel must hold a public confirmation hearing and then make a report to the Commissioner on the proposed appointment with a recommendation to the police and crime commissioner as to whether or not the candidate should be appointed. The report must be published and must be delivered within three weeks. It is for the commissioner to decide whether to proceed with the appointment, regardless of the Panel's recommendation.

Appointment, suspension and removal of chief constable

When the Commissioner proposes to appoint a Chief Constable, the Panel must be notified of the name of the proposed appointee, the criteria used to assess the suitability of the candidate for the appointment, why the candidate satisfies those criteria; and the terms and conditions on which the candidate is to be appointed.

The panel must hold a public confirmation hearing and then make a report to the Commissioner on the proposed appointment with a recommendation to the police and crime commissioner as to whether or not the candidate should be appointed. The report must be published and must be delivered within three weeks. If two-thirds of the persons who are members of the panel at the time when the decision is made vote in favour of vetoing the appointment, the appointment shall not proceed.

It is for the commissioner to decide whether to proceed with the appointment, regardless of the Panel's recommendation.

If a police and crime commissioner suspends a chief constable from duty, the commissioner must notify the relevant police and crime panel of the suspension.

If the police and crime commissioner wishes to call upon a chief constable to retire or resign, he or she must first give a written explanation to the Chief Constable of the reasons and notify the Panel, giving the Panel a copy of the reasons.

The Commissioner must give the Chief Constable an opportunity to respond and provide the Panel with this response. If the Commissioner intends to proceed with the call to retire or resign, the Panel must (within six weeks) make a recommendation to the Commissioner (which must be published). Before making the recommendation, the Panel may consult the chief inspector of constabulary, and must hold a scrutiny hearing (a meeting of the panel, held in private, which the police and crime commissioner and the chief constable are both entitled to attend for the purpose of making representations relating to the proposal to call upon the chief constable to retire or resign.

It is for the commissioner to decide whether to proceed with the call to retire or resign in light of the Panel's recommendation.

Precept

The police and crime commissioner must notify the relevant police and crime panel of the precept which the commissioner is proposing to issue for the financial year. The Panel must review the proposed precept and must make a report to the commissioner, which may include recommendations – which the Commissioner must have regard to and must publish a response to.

If two-thirds of the persons who are members of the panel at the time when the decision is made vote in favour of vetoing the precept, then the Commissioner must not issue the precept. The Secretary of State may make regulations for the above process, including specifying timelines.

2. Establishing the Panel

There will be a police and crime panel for each force area, consisting of the following members—

(a) ten persons appointed by the Secretary of State as members of the panel; and (b) the appropriate number of members co-opted by the panel.

The default "appropriate number" is two – but a police and crime panel may resolve that the panel is to have a greater number (but not more than ten). This requires the agreement of the Secretary of State.

A police and crime panel in Wales is not a committee or joint committee of any local authority or local authorities.

The Secretary of State must—

- (a) decide which of the relevant local authorities to ask to make nominations
- (b) decide what number of nominations under this sub-paragraph each nominating authority is to be asked to make; and
- (c) ask each nominating authority to nominate that number of the authority's councillors to be members of the panel.

The Secretary of State must ensure that that each relevant local authority has at least one of its councillors as a member of the panel.

If the authority fails to make the nomination, or the nominee does not accept the nomination, the Secretary of State must either—

- (a) ask the authority to make another nomination, or
- (b) nominate a person who is a councillor of a relevant local authority to be a member of the police and crime panel

If the nominee does not accept the nomination, the Secretary of State must nominate another person who is a councillor of a relevant local authority to be a member of the police and crime panel.

All relevant liabilities relating to a police and crime panel are liabilities of the Secretary of State (and accordingly are not liabilities of any member of the panel).

20 (1) The Secretary of State may provide financial and other resources—

(a) to a police and crime panel in connection with the exercise of the panel's functions;

(b) to the members of a police and crime panel in connection with the exercise of their functions; and

(c) to one or more of the relevant local authorities covered by a police area in connection with the exercise of functions by—

(i) such an authority in relation to the police and crime panel for that police area,

(ii) that panel, or

(iii) the members of that panel.

(2) The Secretary of State may provide financial or other resources under subparagraph

(1) subject to conditions.

(3) In the case of resources provided under sub-paragraph (1)(c), the conditions which may be imposed include conditions requiring a relevant local authority to pass resources to, or share resources with, another relevant local authority.

21 The police and crime commissioner for a police area may not be a member of the police and crime panel for the area.

22 A person may not be a co-opted member of the police and crime panel for a police area if the person is any of the following—

(a) a member of the staff of the police and crime commissioner for that police area;

- (b) a member of the civilian staff of the police force for that police area;
- (c) a Member of Parliament;
- (d) a member of the National Assembly for Wales;
- (e) a member of the Scottish Parliament;
- (f) a member of the European Parliament.

23 (1) If the police and crime panel for a police area has two co-opted members, a member of a local authority which is covered by that police area may not be a co-opted member of that panel.

(2) If the police and crime panel for a police area has three or more co-opted members, a member of a local authority which is covered by that police area may be a co-opted member of that panel only if at least two of the other co-opted members are not members of any such local authority.

Panel Arrangements

The Secretary of State is responsible for making the arrangements for the establishment and maintenance of the police and crime panels. The Panel arrangements must cover the following:

- co-option of, and holding of office by, the co-opted members of the police and crime panel.
- the term of office of appointed members and co-opted members of the panel;
- resignation, and removal, of appointed members and co-opted members of the panel;
- conditions for re-appointment of appointed members and co-opted members of the panel.
- the payment of allowances to members of the police and crime panel
- provision for promoting the role of the police and crime panel
- administrative and other support to be given to the police and crime panel and its members
- Support and guidance to be given to—

(i) members of relevant local authorities,

- (ii) members of the executives (if any) of relevant local authorities, and
- (iii) officers of relevant local authorities,

Page⁰40

in relation to the functions of the police and crime panel.

Panel arrangements may make different provision for different cases.

The following persons must comply with the panel arrangements relating to a police and crime panel—

(a) each relevant local authority;

(b) each member of the police and crime panel.

Rules of procedure

25 (1) A police and crime panel must make rules of procedure for the panel.

(2) A police and crime panel's rules of procedure must make provision about the appointment, resignation and removal of a person to chair the panel.

(3) The police and crime panel's rules of procedure may, in particular, make provision about—

- (a) the method of making decisions, and
- (b) the formation of sub-committees.
- (4) A sub-committee of a police and crime panel may not co-opt members.

Voting by members

26 All members of a police and crime panel may vote in proceedings of the panel.

Exercise of special functions

The special functions of a police and crime panel may not be discharged by a committee or sub-committee of the panel. These "special functions" are the functions conferred on a police and crime panel by—

- (a) Section 28(3) (scrutiny of police and crime plan);
- (b) Section 28(4) (scrutiny of annual report);
- (c) Paragraphs 10 and 11 of Schedule 1;
- (d) Schedule 5 (issuing precepts); and
- (e) Part 1 of Schedule 8 (scrutiny of appointment of chief constables).

Validity of proceedings

The validity of the proceedings of a police and crime panel is not affected by a vacancy in the membership of the panel or a defect in appointment.

Duty to produce balanced panel

In making appointments to the panel, local authorities and the Secretary of State must secure that (as far as is reasonably practicable), the local authority members of a police and crime panel (when taken together)—

(a) represent all parts of the relevant police area;

(b) represent the political make-up of the relevant local authorities (when taken together);

(c) have the skills, knowledge and experience necessary for the police and crime panel to discharge its functions effectively.

The Panel must consider from time to time whether changing the number of co-opted members would assist in achieving this objective (co-opted members who are members of

relevant local authorities count in the calculation described above) – and any appointments made must assist in achieving this objective.

In co-opting members who are not members of relevant local authorities, a police and crime panel must secure that (as far as is reasonably practicable) the appointed and co-opted members of the panel (when taken together) have the skills, knowledge and experience necessary for the police and crime panel to discharge its functions effectively.

If a relevant local authority has a mayor and cabinet executive, they need to nominate the Mayor as one of their representatives on the Panel.

The Secretary of State can make regulations (including timescales) regarding the making of nominations and appointments, the notification of nominations and appointments (and accepting and refusing nominations) and the termination of appointments (including provision about when appointments are to be treated as having been terminated.

Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO:	COMMUNITY PROFILE & PARTNERSHIPS
	OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE:	MONDAY,16 TH JULY 2012

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise on the development of the Forward Work Programme for the Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

- 2.01 Members will be aware that items can feed into a committee's Forward Work Programme from a number of sources. Individual Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny committees; members of the public can suggest topics; items can be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes; items can be referred by the County Council, or Directors can request that a committee gives a view on a particular topic.
- **2.02** In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful to apply a 'test of significance'. This can be achieved by asking a range of questions, some of which could come from the following list, which is not intended to be exhaustive:
 - 1. Will the review contribute to the Council's priorities and/or objectives?
 - 2. Are there issues of weak or poor performance?
 - 3. How, where and why were the issues identified?
 - 4. Is there any evidence that local communities think the issues are important and is there any evidence of public dissatisfaction with a particular service?
 - 5. Has there been new Government guidance or legislation?
 - 6. Have inspections been carried out by an Overview & Scrutiny committee or by one of the Council's regulators?
 - 7. Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review of any form?

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the Forward Work Programme of the committees of which they are members.

- 3.02 A copy of the provisional programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members' consideration.
- 3.03 As advised at the previous meeting, we are still awaiting Welsh Government guidance on the implementation of s. 59 of the local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 which deals with 'scrutinising designated persons'.

4.00 **RECOMMENDATIONS**

That the committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme (see Appendix 1).

- 5.00 <u>FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS</u> None arising directly from this report.
- 6.00 <u>ANTI POVERTY IMPACT</u> None arising directly from this report.
- 7.00 <u>ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT</u> None arising directly from this report.
- 8.00 <u>EQUALITIES IMPACT</u> None arising directly from this report.
- 9.00 <u>PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS</u> None arising directly from this report.
- **10.00** CONSULTATION REQUIRED Not applicable.
- **11.00** <u>CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN</u> Publication of this report constitutes consultation.
- **12.00** <u>APPENDICES</u> Current Forward Work Programme (Appendix 1)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:Robert RobinsTelephone:01352 702320Email:Robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Community Profile & Partnerships Overview & Scrutiny Committee FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

	DATE OF MEETING	SUBJECT	PURPOSE	RESPONSIBLE / CONTACT OFFICER
Page 45	Thursday 6th September 2012 10.00	Clwyd Theatr Cymru		Member Engagement Manager
	Monday 15 th October 2012 10.00			
	Monday 7 th January 2013 10.00			

Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank